
BID # CHA24-02                                         ADDENDUM NUMBER 01 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
FOR: 

Financial ERP Consulting Services 
2/6/2024 

 
TO: ALL CONTRACT BIDDERS OF RECORD 
This Addendum forms a part of the Contract Documents and modifies the Request for Proposals 
dated January 16, 2024, with amendments and answers to bidder questions noted below. This 
Addendum consists of a total of eleven (11) pages. 

 
 
BIDDER QUESTIONS 

 
1. Do the individual community colleges have their own business office and student accounts, or is 

there one office that supports them all? 
a. Each college has their own business office and there is a Finance Office within the 

System Office as well.  
 
2. Is CCSNH using ODS/EDW?  What are the (other) reporting tools in use?  

a. Tools include reports within Ellucian Banner (student and finance) 
 
3. Will training material be developed for each individual school or are the business processes all 

the same? 
a. Business processes are essentially the same, however there are some local controls that 

are leveraged.  One set of documentation would be helpful. 
 
4. Is there any interest is using some of the hours to do a Back-to-Basics assessment for Finance to 

understand or identify the gaps in use?  
a. Yes.  Please provide examples of such work in your proposal.  

 
5. Does each campus have its own instance of Banner, or is it done in the central office? 

a. No, all colleges of the CCSNH use the same instance of Banner  
 

6. Does the chart of accounts follow the state, or are the individual campuses allowed to create 
their own charts?  Does each campus have a part of the overall chart of accounts at different 
levels of hierarchy? 

a. There is one chart of accounts that is used by CCSNH. Each college (and the 
System Office) has a specific subset of the GL including parent-child relationships 
with accounts that roll up to consolidated view of a college.  

 
7. Does CCSNH use a third-party e-procurement solution such as Jaggaer or IonWave? 

a. No 
 
8. Does CCSNH have Intellicheck and eVisions?   

a. CCSNH uses both Intellicheck and eVisions 
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b. CCSNH uses FormFusion to print: 
i. Purchase Orders 

ii. 1099 Forms 
c. 1098T’s are outsourced 

 
9. What report writer does the College use?  Does IT write the reports, or are the end users 

allowed to use the tools to write them?  
a. The primary reports are canned within Banner, however we do have a staff 

member that can pull data using SQL. 
 
10. Do you have separate foundations?   If so, do they have separate charts?  

a. We do, but they are not included within the scope of this RFP. 
 
11. Do the campuses have many grants? 

a. Yes. There are system-wide grants and college-based grants. 
 
12. Are the Colleges semester schools or quarter schools? 

a. Semesters, with varying parts of term. 
 
13. How is financial aid refunded and applied to student accounts at each of the campuses?  Is the 

process run centrally or by each campus?  
a. This facet is not being included in the scope of this RFP at this time. 

 
14. Are the fixed asset and research accounting modules being utilized at this time? 

a. Yes, both are currently being used. 
 
15. If the research accounting module is being used, are they using the grant billing and proposal 

piece? 
a. We are currently using the proposal piece and not the billing piece. 

 
16. What is the budget for the project? If it has not be determined, does CCSNH have a 

preferred range for an hourly rate?  
a. We are seeking competitive bids from vendors. 

 
17. Is there a preference for one consultant vs. a team time consultants that can support 

CCSNH?    
a. No preference, but continuity of work is key.  We would prefer to have staff that 

can build a familiarity with our systems to ensure consistent and efficient work. 
 

18. RFP mentions 100 hours per month.  Will the hours be divided equally per week? Or can 
we expect significant fluctuations between weeks?  

a. The expectation would be for consistent effort, though we understand there will 
be a need for flexibility.  
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19. Do you expect the work to be performed only during normal business hours? If yes, 

what are your normal business hours of operation?  
a. Business operating hours are from 8am – 5 pm M-F. In most cases, having these 

efforts done during normal operating hours is the expectation to allow 
consultants to communicate with end users in real time 
 

20. Will they be working onsite, remote or hybrid work schedules?  
a. We are flexible in this regard 

 
21. If travel is expected on-site, how often and how long per each visit?  

a. If necessary, it will be determined based on need 
 

22. If onsite travel is expected, our consultants generally work Monday through Thursday 
and Friday is a travel day?  Is that acceptable?  If not, what is your preferred travel/work 
schedule? Will travel expenses be reimbursed by your institution? Or if not, should the 
travel expenses then be included in the hourly rate?  

a. Please share rates with and without travel included 
 

23. What other software, systems, and platforms (i.e., document management, imaging or 
electronic forms, etc.) does the institution use to manage financial aid?  

a. CCSNH uses Ellucian Banner to manage FA.  We also use a Banner bolt on 
software for all document imaging. 
 

24. Will the institution commission laptops to the consultants or will they be granted 
VPN/Remote Desktop access if no laptop is provided?  

a. To ensure security protocols, CCSNH would provide all hardware and VPN access 
 

25. We are not currently registered as a vendor in the state of NH, please provide the terms 
and conditions of the CCSNH that are mentioned under vendor certifications.  

a. Please see below link for more information about registering a business in NH 
i. https://www.revenue.nh.gov/faq/register-business.htm 

b. CCSNH sample contract with T&Cs is attached at the end of this document 
 

26. Will CCSNH be open to modifications to their terms and conditions?  
a. Please address any terms within your submission 

 
27. Insurance questions: 

a. The RFP requests a Certificate of Insurance to be submitted with the bid.  Our 
current aggregate for General Liability and Professional Liability coverage is 
$2,000,000 vs $3,000,000 as requested.  We are willing to increase our insurance 
coverage if awarded the contract. Will submitting a COI with our current lower 
aggregate disqualify our bid?  

https://www.revenue.nh.gov/faq/register-business.htm
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i. No.  Please include some version of the above within your submission 
b. Please provide the full name and address for CCSNH to be listed on the COI.  

i. Community College System of New Hampshire, 26 College Dr, Concord 
NH 03301 

c. Please provide how CCSNH would like the clause to be written regarding 
prohibiting cancellations or modifications of the policy earlier than 10 days after 
written notice thereof has been received by the CCSNH.  

i. “The insured shall provide CCSNH with written notice of cancellations or 
modifications of policy a minimum of 10 days prior to cancellations or 
modifications taking effect.” 
 

28. Is there an incumbent providing these services? If so, who is the current supplier?  
a. There is not, however we did have a contract end in December 2023. 

 
29. If so, has the current supplier been invited to bid on the RFP?  

a. The RFP is open to all willing to submit 
 

30. Has the institution experienced success and/or challenges with previous suppliers?  
a. No                

 
31. Is this RFP required to go to bid due to a contract expiring, or is this RFP issued by 

choice?  
a. The RFP was issued by choice 

 
32. Will we have an opportunity to review RFP Q&As from the other respondents?  

a. Yes 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CCSNH Contract for Services sample below: 
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Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum with the Proposal 
Form. Failure to do so may disqualify the Bidder. 

 
NOTE: IN THE EVENT THAT YOUR BID HAS BEEN SENT TO THIS OFFICE PRIOR TO RECEIVING THIS 
ADDENDUM, RETURN THE ADDENDUM WITHIN THE SPECIFIED TIME WITH ANY CHANGES YOU MAY 
WISH TO MAKE AND MARK ON THE REMITTANCE ENVELOPE BID INVITATION NUMBER AND 
OPENING DATE. RETURNED ADDENDA WILL SUPERSEDE PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED BID. 

 
Bidder   

 
By   _Date   
(This Document Must Be Signed) 

 
Name   
(Please Print or Type Name) 

 
 
 

SUBJECT:             


